
 
 

(Established pursuant to section 103 of the Local Democracy, Economic Development  
and Construction Act 2009 as the Halton, Knowsley, Liverpool, St Helens, Sefton  

and Wirral Combined Authority) 

 
MEETING OF THE LIVERPOOL CITY REGION 

COMBINED AUTHORITY 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

 
 
To: The Members of the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority 
 Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
 
 
 
Dear Member, 
 
You are requested to attend a meeting of the Liverpool City Region Combined 
Authority Overview and Scrutiny Committee to be held on Wednesday, 6th 
March, 2019 at 10.15 am in the Authority Chamber - No.1 Mann Island, 

Liverpool, L3 1BP. 
 
If you have any queries regarding this meeting, please contact Charles Yankiah 
on telephone number (0151) 330 1079. 
 

Yours faithfully 
 

 
 

Head of Paid Service 
 
 



 

 

LIVERPOOL CITY REGION COMBINED AUTHORITY OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

AGENDA 
 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

   

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

   

3. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETINGS OF THE OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  

 To consider the minutes of the previous meetings of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held on: - 
 

a) 5th December 2018 
 

b) 30th January 2019 – Special Budget Meeting (Inquorate meeting) 

  (Pages 1 - 14) 
 

4. UPDATE FROM METRO MAYOR, STEVE ROTHERAM  

   

5. DRAFT HOUSING STRATEGY UPDATE  

 To consider the report that provides an update on the preparation of the 
Liverpool City Region Housing Strategy.  

  (Pages 15 - 24) 
 

6. AIR QUALITY ACTION PLAN UPDATE  

 To receive a presentation from Huw Jenkins, Lead Officer, Transport in 
relation to the Air Quality Action Plan update. 

   

7. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REVIEW FOR 2018/19  

 To consider the Scrutiny Annual Report 2018-19 and also provide 
Members with an opportunity to review the future operation of the 
Overview and Scrutiny function through its proposed work programme for 
2019/20. 

  (Pages 25 - 42) 
 

8. ANY OTHER ITEM(S) WHICH THE CHAIRPERSON DEEMS TO BE OF 
AN URGENT NATURE  

  



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
 

At a meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee held in the Authority Chamber 
- No.1 Mann Island, Liverpool, L3 1BP on Wednesday, 5th December, 2018 the 
following Members were 
 
Councillor Louise Whitley  Labour   Halton BC 
Councillor Kevan Wainwright  Labour   Halton BC 
Councillor Bill Woolfall  Labour   Halton BC 
 
Councillor Ken McGlashan  Labour   Knowsley MBC 
Councillor Edna Finneran  Labour   Knowsley MBC 
Councillor Carl Cashman  Liberal Democrat Knowsley MBC 
 
Councillor Patrick Hurley  Labour   Liverpool CC 
Councillor Tricia O’Brien  Labour   Liverpool CC 
 
Councillor June Burns   Labour   Sefton MBC 
Councillor Sam Marshall   Labour   Sefton MBC 
Councillor Paula Murphy  Labour   Sefton MBC 
 
Councillor Joe De’ Asha  Labour   St Helens MBC 
Councillor Jeanette Banks  Labour   St Helens MBC 
 
Councillor Jean Stapleton  Labour   Wirral MBC 
Councillor Adrian Jones  Labour   Wirral MBC 
 
Councillor Dr John Pugh  Liberal Democrat LCR Liberal Democrat  
        Group 
Councillor Sir Ron Watson OBE Conservative  LCR Conservative Group 
 
 
1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRPERSON  
 
Councillor Dr John Pugh nominated Councillor Carl Cashman to be the Chairperson 
of the LCR Overview and Scrutiny Committee for the remainder of 2018/19. 
 
This was seconded by Councillor Sir Ron Watson OBE 
 
A vote was taken with the Labour Councillors abstaining.  
 
RESOLVED that Councillor Carl Cashman be appointed as the Chairperson of the 
LCR Overview and Scrutiny Committee for the remainder of the municipal year 
2018/19.  
 
 
2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Jimmy Jackson, Tom 
Anderson and Mary Rasmussen. 
 
 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 
4. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING OF THE OVERVIEW & 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the previous meeting of the LCR Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held on 5th September 2018 be approved as a correct record. 
 
Councillor McGlashan enquired about the representation to Government regarding 
the Quorum. 
 
Jill Coule, Monitoring Officer informed the Committee that representation had been 
made to the Government on behalf of the Liverpool City Region by the Centre for 
Public Scrutiny having conducted a consultation exercise with all the Combined 
Authorities and an expected response and draft guidance was expected by the end 
of December 2018. Once received the response and draft guidance would be shared 
with the Committee. 
 
 
5. UPDATE FROM THE METRO MAYOR STEVE ROTHERAM  
 
The Metro Mayor, Steve Rotheram provided an update relating to his work over the 
period of September – December 2018 and he highlighted the following: - 
 

 The launch of the Strategic Investment Fund 

 Apprenticeship Travel Card 

 Foodbanks 

 The launch One Front Door 

 Giants final visit 

 Living Wage Week 
 
He also informed the Committee that he had a number of site visits to Cammell 
Lairds and various Foodbanks across the City Region in Wirral, Halton and Liverpool. 
 
Members enquired about the launch of the One Front Door and its benefits to the 
smaller boroughs of the region and how the value would be measured. 
 
Steve Rotheram informed the Committee that the One Front Door was an internal 
brand for the City to represent and promote each district. It would be beneficial to the 
entire city region and would provide and produce growth in every borough through 
investment, funding and marketing with a number of possibilities and opportunities 
across the region. It is the best strategic fit for investment for the City Region and all 
the City Region to compete against the key cities and countries. 
 
Members enquired about the disability access across some of the stations in the 
region that have deep staircases and no access for wheelchairs and prams and 
wanted to know what was being done. 
 
Steve Rotheram informed the Committee that he was aware of the situation across 
the stations and understood the reasons for not wanting to travel around the district 
and the region, but that the special rail grant of £64m had been cut and those 

Page 2



discussions were being held to see what could be done with a more integrated public 
system. 
 
Members enquired about the City Centre fund and how it would work and following 
the Giants visit, what would be happening next. 
 
Steve Rotheram informed the Committee that he had recently been to London and 
had spoken to the Treasury Minister and was advised that there would be investment 
in addition to the Town Centre Investment Fund and there would be opportunities to 
work with Local Authority’s and the Combined Authority to see innovative ways to 
regenerate town centres. He stated that the Combined Authority invested in the 
Giants and provided funding and it was a massive boost to the Arts and Culture for 
the City Region. All 6 Districts have something to offer the City Region and with the 
Borough of Culture 2018 being in St Helens and for 2019 the Borough of Culture 
going to Wirral, it was another opportunity for the spotlight to be shone on the City 
Region. 
 
Members questioned the criteria for seeking investment and the practicalities of the 
criteria and whether there was an element of “weighting” within the criteria and how 
the Bus passes would work for the Foodbank and the Apprentices. 
 
Steve Rotheram stated that the travel for apprentices would have no restrictions and 
they would receive a pass which would be funded by the Bus Alliance (Stagecoach 
and Arriva) and would be well advertised. The “My Ticket” would also be extended. 
The Foodbank staff themselves would decide who to distribute the tickets to, as they 
wold be best placed to make that decision. 
 
Steve Rotheram informed the Committee that the Strategic Investment Fund (SIF) 
would be managed initially by an Independent Investment Panel that would judge 
each bid on its own merits and in accordance to the agreed criteria qualifications.  
 
Members enquired about the Single Investment Fund and the Strategic Investment 
Fund (SIF). 
 
Steve Rotheram informed the Committee that the SIF was similar to the Single 
Investment Fund with the same sort of funding idea. It is part of the Combined 
Authority and was part of the signed agreement in 2015 and has a £172m 
transforming cities fund for the region for transport infrastructure.   
 
The Committee noted the update from the Metro Mayor, Steve Rotheram and 
thanked him for his attendance. 
 
 
6. APPOINTMENTS OF SCRUTINY MEMBERS TO THE AUDIT AND 

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE  
 
The Committee considered a report relating to the appointment of scrutiny members 
to the Audit and Governance Committee presented by Jill Coule, Monitoring Officer. 
 
RESOLVED that Councillor Carl Cashman (Liberal Democrat Councillor) and 
Councillor Tom Anderson (Conservative Councillor) be appointed as the substitute 
members to the Audit and Governance Committee. 
 
 
 

Page 3



 
7. PORTFOLIO LEAD UPDATE - COUNCILLOR PHIL DAVIES  
 
The Committee received a presentation from Councillor Phil Davies (Wirral), the 
Portfolio Holder for Inclusive Growth, Economic Development, Digital and Innovation 
as part of the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority. He highlighted the following: 
- 

 The remit of his portfolio and the workplan; 

 The portfolio 9 objectives that divide into foundations and activities; 

 The key deliverables for the portfolio including – 
o Investment Strategy 
o One Front Door 
o Local Industrial Strategy 
o Launch and Commitment of Strategic Investment Fund Round 2 
o Town Centre programmes 
o Inclusive Growth Principles and Models 
o Audit of Public Purse 
o Digital Infrastructure Delivery 
o Innovation and Commercialisation Initiatives 

 
Members enquired about the Community Wealth Fund and the implication that every 
local authority in the region would have the same ambitions to trade, achieve 
efficiencies, double-up on wages and production and how could local people benefit 
from the wealth across the region. 
 
Councillor Davies informed the Committee that workshops were being organised for 
January/February 2019 with the Centre for Local Economic Strategy who specialised 
in community wealth issues. A number of issues would be looked at including who 
benefits from the wealth fund, benefits to local businesses, social enterprises and 
community interest companies & mutuals’. 
 
Members enquired about the Strategic Investment Fund and commented that some 
thought would need to be given to improve the capacity of locally based businesses 
and not just to give contracts to local people, because the business owners usually 
lived outside the City Region. So it would need to be well researched, top-notch, 
productive and world competitive and be able to produce strategies and business 
support that would be effective. There was some concern expressed about the 
Combined Authority (CA) developing policies and strategies and not involving 
districts and linking authority officers into the process. 
 
Councillor Davies informed the Committee that the Single Investment Fund has been 
subsumed within the CA into the Strategic Investment Fund. He stated that all 
strategies and plans are on the CA website for all to access and there have been 
successful member/officer meetings with all 6 Local Authority’s involving the Chief 
Executives, Leaders, Directors of Regeneration and the Economic Development 
portfolio holders who meet regularly. 
 
The Committee noted the update from the Portfolio Holder for Inclusive Growth, 
Economic Development, Digital and Innovation, Councillor Phil Davies (Wirral) and 
thanked him for his attendance. 
 
 
 
 

Page 4



8. ONE FRONT DOOR  
 
The Committee considered a report from Lorna Rogers (Head of Mayoral CA 
Delivery Programme) relating to the One Front Door (OFD) who highlighted the 
following to the Committee: - 
 

 Combined Authority mandated to conduct a review of investment services; 

 Feedback from investors and investment practitioners was that current 
landscape is confusing and fragmented with inconsistent data; 

 There is a focus on place based marketing and inward investment; 

 Developed a draft proposal for a revised service offer which was approved by 
the CA in October 2018;  

 Finalising the business plan and delivery model in December 2018 for 
implementation and delivery in Quarter 1 in 2019; 

 Current inward investment provision; 

 Principles and benefits; 

 Proposed delivery model; and  

 Delivery output. 
 
The Chair, Councillor Cashman enquired if there had been any friction between the 
Local Authority’s and the Combined Authority because of the proposal. 
 
Lorna Rogers informed the Committee that there were no reported frictions and it had 
been well received across the region. Conversations and relationships were already 
being built and the City Region was prepared to have one consistent message about 
the City Region and investment opportunities being sent out from the region. 
 
Members enquired about the data capture and how the planning application process 
would work across the Local Authorities. 
 
Lorna Rogers informed the Committee that the team would be marketing itself when 
up and running and to date there was no LCR data available about the number of 
enquiries and conversions. Planning Applications would continue to be dealt with by 
Local Authorities, but this would need to be clarified. 
 
Members enquired about the composition of the OFD Board, what the OFD Team 
structure would be and the associated costs. 
 
Lorna Rogers informed the Committee that the composition of the Board had not yet 
been agreed, but would be happy to feed that back to the Committee at a future 
meeting. She also stated that a workshop was held in August 2018 with 
representatives from the 6 Local Authority’s, existing businesses and investors and 
the feedback relating to the team structure was that it needed 5/6 posts including a 
marketing manager, account managers, a team leader and administrative posts and 
would cost about £300k per annum. 
 
Members commented that the OFD was a really good idea and would market and 
sell the entire region through one enquiry which could then be directed to the best 
possible fit among the 6 districts. 
 
Members stated that approximately 60% of the budget was staff costs and if there 
were any intentions to levy businesses. 
 

Page 5



Lorna Rogers informed the Committee that levying the businesses had not been 
considered, but there would be start-up costs for the OFD incurred in the first year for 
the OFD. She also stated that there would be cost savings involved by reducing 
duplication, concentrating efforts and directing services etc. 
 
Members enquired about how performance of the OFD would be measured and how 
it would be developed. 
 
Lorna Rogers informed the Committee that there would be key performance 
indicators in place to monitor performance which would be developed by the OFD 
Board once it is established. 
 
Resolved that the Liverpool City Region Overview and Scrutiny Committee: 
 

a) notes the content of the report. 
 

b) notes the Appendix A to the report and supports the creation of a One Front 
Door Team. 
 

c) notes the decision of the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority on 19th 
October 2018 relating to the “One Front Door‟ proposal at Appendix B. 
 

d) requests that a report be submitted to a future meeting of Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee regarding proposed board representation and an inward 
investment strategy. 
 

e) requests that future updates be presented to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee on the development and performance of the “One Front Door” 
service. 
 
 

9. AIR QUALITY ACTION PLAN UPDATE  
 
The Committee receive an update from Huw Jenkins (Policy Lead – Transport) 
relating to the Air Quality Action Plan. He highlighted the following: -  

 January 2018 – Overview and Scrutiny Committee agreed to establish a Task 
and Finish Group on Air Quality; 

 June 2018 – Task and Finish Group make recommendations to the Combined 
Authority; 

 Air Quality issues continue to grow at national and City Region level; 

 Proposed actions in response to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee; 

 Actions being implemented; 

 Task Force being established; and 

 Action Plan to be reported back to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee by 
March 2019. 

 
Members commented that the work and scrutiny done by the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee last year had made a difference and will make a difference in the future 
with the Action Plans and the Task Force on Air Quality being established. 
 
Huw Jenkins congratulated the Committee on the work it had done and stated that it 
was time for it to all come together and see the real value in the entire process. 
 

Page 6



The Committee noted the update from Huw Jenkins and thanked him for his 
attendance. 
 
 
10. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - WORKSHOPS AND TASK & 

FINISH GROUPS  
 
The Committee considered an update from Kirsty Pearce (Director for Policy and 
Strategic Commissioning) and Jill Coule (Chief Legal and Monitoring Officer) relating 
to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee Workshops and Task & Finish Groups that 
had been organised for the remainder of the municipal year 2018/19. 
 
Kirsty Pearce informed the Committee that the Housing Workshop held on 28th 
November was well attended and received by members and the feedback to date 
had been very positive. She informed the Committee that there were 2 more 
workshops scheduled for 2018 including EU Funding/Brexit and Tourism, Culture & 
Marketing the Region on 12th and 17th December respectively. However, she notified 
the Committee that due to staff being off sick that the 12th December workshop would 
need to be swapped with the 23rd January 2019 workshop (Careers Service). 
 
Jill Coule informed the Committee about the Budget process for 2019/20 and sought 
agreement from the Committee to have a Special Budget Meeting on 30th January 
from 10:15am to scrutinise the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority Budget 
2019/20. 
 
Members enquired about the amount of time Councillors had been committing to 
Liverpool City Region meetings and activities and requested that some sort of time 
keeping be adopted to track members involvement and attendance. 
 
RESOLVED that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee: - 
 

a) agrees the revised version of the Work Programme for 2018/19; 
 

b) notes the changes to the EU Funding/Brexit Workshop and the Careers 
Service Workshop; and 
 

c) agrees that a Special Budget Meeting for the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee be held on 30th January 2019 from 10:15am and that members be 
sent invitations accordingly. 
 
 

11. DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
 
The Committee noted that next meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
would be held on Wednesday 30th January 2019 for a Special Budget meeting. 
 
 
12. ANY OTHER ITEM(S) WHICH THE CHAIRPERSON DEEMS TO BE OF AN 

URGENT NATURE  
 
 

 

Chairperson of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

(The meeting closed at 12.25 pm) 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
 

 
At a meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee held in the Authority Chamber 
- No.1 Mann Island, Liverpool, L3 1BP on Wednesday, 30th January, 2019 the 
following Members were present: - 
 
Councillor Louise Whitley  Labour    Halton BC 
Councillor Bill Woolfall  Labour    Halton BC 
 
Councillor Carl Cashman (Chair) Liberal Democrat  Knowsley MBC 
Councillor Edna Finneran  Labour    Knowsley MBC 
Councillor Ken McGlashan  Labour    Knowsley MBC 
 
Councillor Tricia O’Brien  Labour    Liverpool CC 
 
Councillor June Burns   Labour    Sefton MBC 
Councillor Sam Marshall  Labour    Sefton MBC 
Councillor Paula Murphy (V. Chair) Labour    Sefton MBC 
 
Councillor Jean Stapleton  Labour    Wirral MBC 
Councillor Adrian Jones  Labour    Wirral MBC 
Councillor Tom Anderson  Conservative   Wirral MBC 
 
Councillor Dr John Pugh  Liberal Democrat  LCR Liberal  
         Democrat Group 
 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Kevan Wainwright, Patrick 
Hurley, Mary Rasmussen, Jeanette Banks, Joe De Asha, Jimmy Jackson and Sir 
Ron Watson. 
 
 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 
3. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING OF THE OVERVIEW AND 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 
NOTED that the minutes of the previous meeting of the LCR Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee held on 5th December 2018 were considered to be a correct record and 
that they would need to be formally approved at the next quorate meeting of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Meeting. 
 
 
4. MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY BUDGET SETTING REPORT 2019/20  
 
The inquorate meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee considered the 
LCRCA Budget for 2019/20 presented by the Metro Mayor, Steve Rotheram and the 
Director of Corporate Services, John Fogarty. 

Page 9



 
The Metro Mayor, Steve Rotheram provided an introduction and some background to 
the Budget for 2019/20 to the meeting. 
 
Chris Tidswell (CIPFA) provided the meeting with some context in relation to the 
options and funding that were available and how CIPFA considered the information 
provided by the LCRCA, the Metro Mayor and the constituent Councils relating to the 
Mayoral Precept and provided the recommendations. 
 
The Director of Corporate Services, John Fogarty presented the LCRCA Budget 
2019/20 to the meeting and highlighted the following: - 
 

 Expenditure and Income 

 Transport Costs 

 The Transport Levy 

 Mayoral Costs and the CA Costs 

 LCRCA Management Structure 

 Other CA Costs 

 Capital Programme 

 SIF Awards 
 
The Metro Mayor, Steve Rotheram then concluded the presentations and invited 
questions from members of the meeting. 
 
Members enquired and challenged the following areas relating to the LCRCA Budget 
for 2019/20: - 
 
Mayoral Precept  

 Would the precept be increased next year or year on year;  

 How would households cope with additional increases expected with the 
Police, Fire and Waste precepts as well; and 

  What costs does the Mayoral Precept cover/include. 
 
Mersey Tunnel Tolls 

 The impact on working people in the Liverpool City Region, who do not live in 
the Liverpool City Region, but work here and should not be allowed to pay the 
£1.80, but benefit from the £1 Fast Tag; and 

 Cost of the Fast Tag. 
 
Liverpool City Region Combined Authority   

 Clarification on the number of new posts established for the Combined 
Authority; 

 Clarification on the imbalance between corporate costs and communication 
costs; 

 Clarification on the use of Gainshare for 2019/20 and would it be repeated in 
2020/21; 

 The budget lacked clarity on the overall budget spend and non-mayoral 
budget; 

 The inconsistency in the information presented in the report relating to the 
tables and timescales of three and four years; 

 Was the structure fit for purpose to manage a possible £1.2b programme; 

 What’s the timetable for delivery of the proposed projects and programmes; 

Page 10



 Would the budget eventually be reduced year on year based upon the 
proposed projects and programmes being delivered within the agreed 
timescales; 

 Clarification on what the Capacity Grant is and being used for; 

 The total costs of everything should be shown more clearly within the report in 
future; 

 What percentage of the reserves had been used for the LCRCA budget costs; 
and 

 Clarification on the Revenue Budget costs. 
 
Merseytravel 

 What is the actual Rolling Stock costs; 

 Clarification on the use of the reserves; 

 How much of the reserves were being used for Rolling Stock; and 

 Clarification on the shared services and staff between the CA and 
Merseytravel. 

 
CIPFA 

 Clarification on the balance between the running costs and the number of 
projects being proposed; and 

 Clarification on the expected revenue to capital baseline costs for 
programmes. 

 
The Chair, Councillor Cashman thanked the Metro Mayor and John Fogarty and the 
team for the effort and time taken to involve scrutiny in the process and stated that he 
understood the difficulty related to the funding and believed that the options available 
to the CA were poor, but encouraged the Metro Mayor to continue to represent the 
City Region to Government and to continue to any discussions to assist the LCR and 
its funding opportunities. 
 
The Metro Mayor, Steve Rotheram informed the meeting that there was a need to 
have a sustainable financial model to fund the CA as it was unable to use pre-
allocated funds. The CA looked at the CIPFA recommendations and with internal 
meetings, joint meetings with the Local Authorities, the Chief Executives and the 
professional recommendations decided there was no other sustainable way to do it, 
other than the precept. He explained that it was well known that the Merseyside 
Councils s were hit the hardest in the north.  It was not possible to, repeat last year’s 
arrangements of being funded directly by the constituent council’s because of risk 
and funding issues with those Local Authorities. He stated that he had been heavily 
criticised publicly for the precept and it was actually called the “Metro Mayor’s tax”, 
but the budget, in law, has to be balanced and with the precept it was about trying to 
keep it as low as possible. The Metro Mayor also commented that the staffing 
structure is fit for purpose although it started with something different and has had to 
change it along the way to tailor it to focus on delivery and it was important to 
communicate that message effectively across the City Region. He stated that the CA 
did not wish to simply build up the financial reserves but to ensure that the money 
was being put to good use through the rolling stock project for example and will 
enable other projects to go forward and be delivered. He also commented that largely 
the budget for the tunnel tolls was budget neutral and it was not about penalising 
anyone, but rather that the budget had to be balanced and the CA wanted to be open 
and transparent with its proposals which was to the benefit the people within the LCR 
who were council tax payers within the LCR and shouldn’t have to subsidise people 
from outside the City Region.  
 

Page 11



The Chief Executive, Frank Rogers stated that there were circa 75 posts on the 
staffing structure and it had been made clear in the report that a significant number of 
posts had been secondments from Knowsley and shared staff with Merseytravel 
since 2014. The CA did what it could as a City Region to utilise good officers having 
been challenged by the Government. He also stated that the proposed £1.2b was a 
mix of capital and revenue and was not a definitive amount but the CA would be able 
to secure it through robust and evidenced based programmes and to enable the CA 
to support Local Authorities to secure funding to allocate delivery across all the City 
Region. 
 
John Fogarty informed the meeting that there was a balance of services shared the 
CA and Merseytravel such as engagement and communication costs a shared 
payroll and other services with Merseytravel. A small proportion of payroll and 
procurement staff were also utilised with the CA not picking up the entire costs, but 
shared with Merseytravel. He stated that with the Mayoral Precept, it was about 
balancing the budget and keeping the precept to a minimum. However, Government 
expressed a view to exclude certain costs from the Mayoral costs, for example, the 
Management Team. He explained that the reserves linked to specific projects and 
rather than the money sitting in a bank account and drawn down each year, it has 
been invested into the rolling stock project. 
 
The Chair, Councillor Cashman concluded the discussions and stated that though he 
disagreed with the precept and its elements, he empathised with the Metro Mayor 
and the position the Government has put on the City Region through the lack of 
funding and supports the Metro Mayor’s attempts to represent the City Region to the 
Government. 
 
The Chief Legal and Monitoring Officer, Jill Coule advised the meeting that due to the 
meeting being inquorate it would only be able to express a view about the budget 
that had been presented, which would be shared with the LCRCA when it considers 
the budget proposals at its meeting on Friday 1st February 2019. 
 
It was generally welcomed that this was the first time that that the Overview and 
Scrutiny meeting had been asked to pre-scrutinise this budget.  Officers were 
requested to refine the process for future years. 
 
The inquorate meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee noted the report and 
supported the recommendations contained in the LCRCA Mayoral budget and the 
General budget for 2019/20 and requested that the LCR Combined Authority 
consider the issues raised during this meeting to inform their decision. 
 
 
5. DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
 
The Committee noted that next meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

would be held on Wednesday 6 March 2019. 

 

 

6. ANY OTHER ITEM(S) WHICH THE CHAIRPERSON DEEMS TO BE OF AN 
URGENT NATURE  

 
There was no other business. 
 
 

Page 12



 

Chairperson of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

(The meeting closed at 12.49 pm) 
 
 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



LIVERPOOL CITY REGION COMBINED AUTHORITY 
 
 
To:      The Chair and Members of the Overview and Scrutiny 
     Committee  
 
Meeting:     6th March 2019   
 
Authority/Authorities Affected:   Combined Authority 
 
EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL ITEM: No 
 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF POLICY AND STRATEGIC COMMISSIONING  
 

DRAFT HOUSING STRATEGY UPDATE 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 This report provides an update to the Committee on the preparation of the Liverpool 

City Region Housing Strategy. It sets out (in Appendix 1), a summary of  comments 
submitted by Committee members at a housing strategy workshop held on the 28th 
November 2018, and a proposed response to them. 

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 It is recommended that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee: 
 

(a) Approve this report noting the progress made on the preparation of the City 
Region Housing Strategy to date; 

(b) Note the responses provided in Appendix 1 of this report to points raised by 
Committee Members at the November 2018 housing strategy workshop; and 

(c) Request the Director of Policy and Strategic Commissioning to report the City 
Region Housing Strategy to a future meeting of this Committee for its 
information. 

 
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 As Committee members are aware, as outlined in the Combined Authority 

Corporate Plan, the CA is currently preparing a Liverpool City Region Housing 
Strategy designed to implement the Metro Mayor’s housing priorities and Corporate 
Plan objectives.  

 
3.2 As part of the preparation of a draft Strategy, a workshop was held on 28th 

November 2018 for Overview and Scrutiny Committee members. At this workshop, 
housing data was presented along with a series of questions seeking members’ 
views on the strategy’s emerging themes and priorities. 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5



3.3 A working draft has now been shared with the city region constituent Local 
Authorities, Housing Associations and Homes England through the CA Housing and 
Spatial Planning Advisory Group (HSPAG).   

 
3.4 Appendix 1 to this report summarises the comments and questions raised by 

Committee members at the workshop and outlines how these comments have been 
addressed in preparing the emerging strategy. The overwhelming majority of 
members’ comments have been reflected in the emerging strategy. This confirms 
that the workshop held in November was important in shaping the strategy’s scope 
and direction. 

 
 
4. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
 
4.1 Financial 
 

There are no direct financial costs arising from this report given that is a report for 
the Committee’s information.  

 
4.2 Human Resources 

 
There are no implications for Human Resources arising from this report. Staff are in 
post in the Combined Authority to draft the Strategy and to coordinate delivery and 
implementation.  

 
4.3 Physical Assets 

 
 There is no direct impact arising from this report on the physical assets of the 
 Combined Authority or the Constituent Councils.  
 
4.4 Information Technology 
 
 There are no implications for IT arising from this report. 
 
5.  RISKS AND MITIGATION 
 
5.1 This report provides an update on the preparation of the City Region Housing 

Strategy and how Committee members’ earlier comments have been addressed in 
the emerging draft. The report recommends the Committee to note these and as 
such, there are no risks associated. 

 
 
6.  EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 There are no direct implications from this report. However, the City Region Housing 

Strategy is being prepared within the context of the Metro Mayor’s inclusive growth 
agenda where no neighbourhood or community should be left behind.  

 
 
 
 

Page 16



 
7.  COMMUNICATION ISSUES 
 
7.1 None foreseen from this report.  
 
8.  CONCLUSION 
 
8.1 The workshop held in November 2018, provided a valuable opportunity for 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee members to be involved in helping shape the 
emerging housing strategy and to undertake pre-approval scrutiny. Members’ 
comments and input have proven important in shaping the strategy’s scope and 
direction. It is recommended that the Director of Policy and Strategic 
Commissioning be requested to report the City Region Housing Strategy to a future 
meeting of this Committee for its information.  

 
 

KIRSTY PEARCE 
Director of Policy and Strategic Commissioning  

 
 

Contact Officer(s): 
Tim Jago, Combined Authority (0151 330 1127) 
 
Appendices: 
Appendix One – Outcome of Overview and Scrutiny Committee Housing Strategy 
Workshop 
 
Background Documents:  
 
None 
 
 
 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 6TH MARCH 2019 

DRAFT HOUSING STRATEGY UPDATE 

 

APPENDIX 1: OUTCOME OF O&S COMMITTEE HOUSING STRATEGY 

WORKSHOP 

28TH NOVEMBER 2018 

1. Strategic Housing Priorities 

Members’ Comments Response  
 

Private landlords – widespread agreement that 
accountability is needed across the private rented 
sector and strong support for 
“registration”/licensing. 
 

Evidence confirms the rate of 
growth of private renting in the 
LCR. There is further evidence 
of poor quality conditions at the 
lower end of the market. 
Accordingly, improving the 
quality of the private rented 
sector is emerging as a key 
priority. 
 

Brownfield sites – support for the brownfield first 
approach, with an appreciation that more support 
(in terms of financial / grant assistance to address 
viability) for brownfield development is needed 
compared to easier to develop sites 
 

The Metro Mayor keen to adopt 
a brownfield first approach to 
housing development. A 
Brownfield Housing Land 
Register has been compiled and 
the sites on it will be the focus 
for funding to address viability 
gaps. 
 

Future housing needs – there is a need for both 
social and private housing to cater for the 
growing elderly population in particular, through:   

o Disability/accessibility needs 
being built in to designs; 

o Adaptations within existing stock; 
o Building housing for the whole 

„life-course‟ which in essence 
future proofs housing across the 
city.  

 

Evidence confirms that LCR has 
an increasingly ageing 
population. The emerging 
housing and spatial development 
strategies recognise the 
challenge posed and are looking 
to ensure new homes are 
accessible and capable of being 
adaptable. 
  

Funding streams –support for devolution and 
the increasing importance of the Combined 
Authority to use its powers to draw down funding. 
 

The housing strategy will be a 
key document in seeking to draw 
down funding from government 
to address LCR housing issues. 
 

Management of stock – need to ensure that the 
most is being made of existing stock, and that 
housing associations in particular have a key 
responsibility in sustaining quality wider 

The housing strategy is being 
prepared in the context of the 
Metro Mayor‟s inclusiveness 
agenda where no neighbourhood 

Page 19



neighbourhood management.  It is clear that 
improving quality together with wider 
regeneration for those places which require it is a 
significant priority.   
 

is left behind. Regeneration of 
the city region‟s more deprived 
neighbourhoods likely to be a 
key priority with the housing 
associations having a key role. 
 

Leasehold Housing – a number of members 
expressed concern about the significant number 
of leasehold properties, most notably relating to 
new developments.  Can there be the 
exploration/influence around a policy which 
requires new housing developments to be 
freehold? 
 

Comments noted. It is 
understood that Government are 
looking at this issue. 

Tenure mix  - a wider tenure mix is needed to 
meet changes in demand and choice with a focus 
on quality    
 

Evidence is being gathered to 
ensure that the right tenure and 
housing mix is provided in the 
city region to meet need and 
aspirational demand. Agree that 
choice and quality is important to 
ensure sustainable communities.  
 

Density levels – a wider point that was 
discussed related to the design of places in terms 
of the number of homes within schemes (which 
was generally considered as too high).   
 

The Metro Mayor has appointed 
a Design Champion to promote 
good quality design. Design 
Panels have also been 
established. Density levels, 
however, can often be a function 
of a development‟s location e.g. 
higher density in city and town 
centres. 
 

Environmental sustainability –needs to be a 
priority and should link directly into the low 
carbon agenda.  

Evidence suggests that housing 
quality in some parts of the city 
region is poor. This has a direct 
impact on environmental 
sustainability through higher 
emissions and also contributes 
to fuel poverty. Improving the 
quality of existing and new 
housing is likely to be a priority. 
 

Homelessness should be a priority for the 
Combined Authority. There was also concern that 
more needs to be done around prevention.  

 
     
 

Evidence confirms that rough 
sleeping and homelessness is a 
growing issue and will be a key 
theme within the emerging 
Housing Strategy.  In particular, 
the three year LCR Housing First 
pilot (£7.7m) is a key delivery 
programme for the Metro Mayor.   
 
The LCR Trailblazer programme 
partly addresses early 

Page 20



intervention and prevention.  The 
national Rough Sleeper Strategy 
highlights prevention as a key 
priority, and by extension, local 
authority level homelessness 
strategies must now focus on 
prevention. 
 

Wider infrastructure is critical and without it 
housing developments will not support resilient 
communities. There are a whole range of 
interdependent factors including providing access 
to jobs, education (schools being built), health 
facilities and services, digital etc. 

 

Agreed. This will be reflected in 
relevant Combined Authority 
strategies.  

   

2. National Policy 

Members’ Comments Response 
 

Devolution – there was strong support 
for more proactive devolution.  A number 
of comparisons were made with GMCA 
and the housing deal that it has secured.  
 
Important to influence Whitehall on 
housing policy and funding.  
 

Noted. The housing strategy will be a key 
document in ongoing devolution 
discussions to draw down funding and 
policy flexibilities. 
 
Add a reference to HE move in 
 

Local Plans –agreed that it is important 
that the individual Plans across the city 
region are consistent, recognising cross-
boundary issues.  The Combined 
Authority can have an important role here 
through its influence and convening 
powers and, in the medium and longer 
term, the Spatial Development Strategy 
(SDS). 
 

Noted. Once published, the Spatial 
Development Strategy will be important 
in shaping the scope of the next wave of 
Local Plans. 

Welfare reform/Universal Credit roll 
out – the impact is considered important 
given the high levels of both private and 
social rented housing in LCR, and how 
this links to wider issues around poverty.  
It is important that the link to welfare 
reform and housing is acknowledged and 
that there are appropriate links to other 
related LCR work-streams.   
 

Noted. Whilst welfare is not a devolved 
matter, it will be important that any 
negative impact of welfare reform is 
mitigated where possible in CA 
strategies. In the housing strategy, for 
example, the supply of and access to 
homes for social rent is likely to be an 
emerging priority. 

 

 

3. Data, forecasting and evidence gaps 

Page 21



Members’ Comments Response 
 

Quality of housing – what can be done 
to improve existing stock, particularly that 
which is privately owned.  Members feel 
that to really understand the issue in 
more granular detail, insights will be 
required from across the six local 
authorities.   
 

Evidence is continues to be gathered on 
housing quality as it is an issue in parts 
of the city region. Improving housing 
quality, both private and social, likely to 
be a key priority in the emerging housing 
strategy. 

  The Committee would also like to see 
greater detail behind the data where 
possible – for the purposes of the 
workshop the intelligence presented was 
relatively high level 
 

Comment noted. More detailed evidence 
on a range of housing issues is currently 
being collected to provide a finer grain 
analysis. 

Forecasting data for LCR was presented 
to illustrate some of the wider economic 
and labour market drivers for housing 
demand.    
 
Post Brexit – this would have an impact 
on all these projections and so will they 
need revisiting? 
 
 
 
 
 
Do we need to account for change in 
the city region local economy post-
2016, as this was when the latest 
forecasts were developed?  
 
 
 
 
 
What actually drives housing 
demand?   
 

 
 
 
 
 
Impossible to determine impact of Brexit 
at this moment in time. Depending on the 
outcome, government may revise a 
number of projections in the future which 
would be taken account of in any revision 
of the housing strategy. 
 
 
The evidence base for the emerging 
Local Industrial Strategy is currently 
being prepared which is likely to include 
updated economic analysis. As the LIS 
evidence base is developed, it will inform 
housing policy and any changes to the 
housing strategy as it is subject to 
monitoring and review. 
 
A combination of population growth and 
labour market trends combine to 
influence household growth, which in turn 
is the key driver for housing demand.  
 

     

4. Other Comments 

Members’ Comments Response 
 

Learn from best practice/successes 
across LCR – for instance, Eldonian 
Village and the history of co-operatives; 
 

Evidence suggests that a range of 
housing tenures and types are required 
to meet demand and a range of delivery 
agencies and mechanisms will be 

Page 22



required to help deliver this. 
 

Ensure that the processes are in place 
for strong two way communications 
between the constituent local authorities 
and the Combined Authority; this is 
crucial in fostering a collaborative 
approach; 
 

The CA Housing and Spatial Planning 
Advisory Group, whose membership 
includes the Constituent Local 
Authorities, facilities this dialogue and 
collaborative approach. The Group is 
supported by technical officer working 
level groups. 
 

Strategically map out where we 
want/need future developments to take 
place, rather than maintaining a 
developer led system; 
 

Evidence is being gathered to inform this 
but have to recognise that there are 
statutory Local Plans in place which have 
designated sites / areas for development.  

Require a “meaningful” definition of 
affordability, as at present it is a 
confusing term to many (at both national 
and local levels) and is at risk of 
becoming meaningless.   
 

Evidence is being gathered to inform this 
for the Liverpool City Region (i.e. 
incomes / house prices / rentals) but 
have to recognise that there are planning 
definitions of “affordable housing” 
already. 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



LIVERPOOL CITY REGION COMBINED AUTHORITY 
 
 
To:  The Chair and Members of the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee 
 
Meeting:     6 March 2019 
 
Authority/Authorities Affected:  All 
 
EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL ITEM: No 
 
 

REPORT OF THE STATUTORY SCRUTINY OFFICER  
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REVIEW FOR 2018-19 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide Members with an opportunity to consider the 

Scrutiny Annual Report 2018-19, which sets out the key achievements and activities 
of the Committee during the course of the municipal year. Furthermore, the report 
also provides Members with an opportunity to consider the future operation of the 
Overview and Scrutiny function through its proposed work programme for 2019/20 
and to support the development of a scrutiny questionnaire to be circulated to the 
members of the Committee. 

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 It is recommended that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee : 
 

(a) agree the Scrutiny Annual Report 2018-19 as set out at Appendix A and that 
any amendments/insertions be made in consultation with the Chair, Vice 
Chairs and the Statutory Scrutiny Officer; 
  

(b) agree the draft Proposed Work Programme for 2019-20 as set out at 
Appendix A and that any amendments during the course of the new 
municipal year be made in consultation with the Chair, the Vice Chairs and 
Stautory Scrutiny Officer; and 

 
(c) endorse the development of a scrutiny questionnaire that will be circulated to 

Members of this Committee.  
 
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The purpose of this Scrutiny Annual Report is to highlight the achievements of the 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee during the municipal year. It is envisaged that the 
Annual Report will promote the work of the Combined Authority Scrutiny function to 

Page 25

Agenda Item 7



elected members, residents and key stakeholders across the City Region and 
beyond.  

 
3.2 The Scrutiny Annual Report is attached at Appendix A. It provides a broad summary 

of the work undertaken during the Committee meeting cycle and then highlights the 
work of the four Workshop Sessions conducted by the Committee. 

 
3.3 A draft Work Programme for 2019-20 is contained within Appendix A and includes 

the draft dates for the Committee meetings for 2019/20 (which is subject to approval 
by the Combined Authority). It is proposed that each of the meetings are themed 
according to the City Region portfolios and feedback from members would be 
welcome in order to plan and prepare for the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee in 2019/20.  

 
 
4. LOOKING FORWARD  
 
4.1 To inform the operation of the scrutiny arrangements in the new municipal year, it is 

important to provide Members with an opportunity to review the current scrutiny 
arrangements. To enable this to take place it is proposed that a scrutiny 
questionnaire be developed and shared with members. The findings of the scrutiny 
questionnaire will be reported back to this Committee in the new municipal year and 
will inform the operation of the Committee in the new municipal year.  

 
 
5. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 

The resources to support such activity are being delivered from within the existing 
resources of the LCR Combined Authority.  

 
5.1 Financial 
 
  There are no specific financial implications associated with this report.  
 
5.2 Human Resources 
 
  There are no specific Human Resources implications associated with this report. 
 
5.3 Physical Assets 
 
 There are no specific Physical Asset implications associated with this report.  
 
5.4 Information Technology 
 

There are no specific Information Technology implications associated with this 
report.  

 
 
6.  RISKS AND MITIGATION 
 
6.1 There are no risks associated with this report or implications.   
 

Page 26



 
7.  EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 There are no equality and diversity implications arising from this report.  
 
 
8.  COMMUNICATION ISSUES 
 
8.1 The Scrutiny Annual Report 2018-19 will be made available on the Liverpool City 

Region Combined Authority website.   
 
 
9.  CONCLUSION 
 
9.1 This report provides Members with an opportunity to review the scrutiny activity 

undertaken during 2018/19 and sets out the next steps in preparation for the 
2019/20 municipal year.  

 
 

KIRSTY PEARCE 
Statutory Scrutiny Officer 

 
Contact Officer(s):  
Trudy Bedford, Committee Services Manager, 0151 330 1330 
Charles Yankiah, Senior Democratic Services Officer, 0151 330 1079 
 
Appendices: 
Appendix A – Scrutiny Annual Report 2018/19 & draft Proposed Work Programme 
2018/19 
 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 

 

LIVERPOOL CITY REGION  

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE 

 

 

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 29

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwi61uz-wqfgAhUQsqQKHW4oBeMQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https://palmbeachrepublicanclub.org/where-is-the-common-sense-scrutiny/&psig=AOvVaw1rCcL-2CreKzhXk3dfRd5S&ust=1549556762350112


2 
 

 

 

CONTENTS                                                                            PAGE NOS. 

Foreword by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee Chair                            3 

Message from the Overview and Scrutiny Vice Chair                                   4 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Members 2018/19                                  5 

Overview and Scrutiny by numbers for 2018/19                                           6 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee                                                                7 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Workshop Sessions –                            8 - 11 

 

 Housing Strategy                                                                                8 

 The Effectiveness of the Careers Service                                          9 

 Tourism, Culture and Marketing the Region                                      10 

 EU Funding/Brexit                                                                              11 
 
 

Looking Ahead – Provisional Work Programme 2019/20                             12 

How to get involved                                                                                       13 

  

Page 30



3 
 

 

FOREWORD 

 

Chair, Councillor Carl Cashman 

 

Welcome to the 2018-19 Annual Report of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. This report highlights the work carried out by the 
Committee over the last year. 
 
Our work programme has been focussed and challenging at times 
where we have focussed on the scrutiny remit of the Committee and 

understood better the decisions of the Metro Mayor and the Combined Authority as we 
felt these were important to the residents of the City Region and we could add value, 
while fulfilling our role.  
 
We have met five times this year and the Metro Mayor, Steve Rotheram was invited 
and attended each meeting. We have completed four Scrutiny Workshop sessions 
which were focussed on the Housing Strategy, Tourism, Culture and Marketing the 
Region, The Effectiveness of the Careers Services and EU Funding/Brexit. 
 
For the first time we scrutinised the LCR Combined Authority’s Budget for 2019/20, 
which proved to be a welcome experience to the Committee. The Committee will learn 
from this process and move forward to enable enhanced scrutiny of the budget in the 
future. 
 
As Chair, I have been grateful for the support of the two Vice Chairs, Councillor Kevan 
Wainwright and Councillor Paula Murphy along with the hard work and commitment 
from the elected members of the Committee. Despite our political differences, the 
committee has worked in tandem to look closely at areas of concern and represent the 
six Local Authority interests.  Members have all made a significant contribution to the 
work of the Committee, the Workshop Sessions and the Scrutiny of the Combined 
Authorities budget for 2019/20.  
 
I appreciate that it is difficult for Members to balance their numerous commitments, but 
I do appreciate the members who made every effort to attend, hold to account, 
question and support the scrutiny process. 
 
I’d like to say a special thank you to the members of the public who attend our meetings 
and to the invited guests for providing the information to contribute to the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee. I am also grateful to all of the officers from within the 
Combined Authority, Merseytravel, constituent Local Authorities and partner 
organisations who provided support and ensured that we delivered a successful work 
programme. 
 
I look forward to the progression of the devolution project and the evolution of scrutiny 
in the coming years. 
 

Carl Cashman 

__________________________ 

Chair, Councillor Carl Cashman 

Page 31



4 
 

 

 

MESSAGE  

Vice Chair, Councillor Kevan Wainwright 

 

It has been an honour to serve on the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
again this this year, as a Vice Chairperson. I look forward to next year 
with enthusiasm.  

The Liverpool City Region (LCR) is still in its fledgling state, but with its 
new administration it is evolving into an authority with a clear strategy 
on the environment, transport, employment & skills and the 

development & regeneration for the City Region area. 

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee has been involved in these strategies by 
ensuring that they are robust and meet the needs of the city region. It is important that 
we act on the public’s behalf to scrutinise emerging policies, ensuring that they are 
transparent in their meanings and recommending changes if they are not. We act as 
an impartial non-political body that challenges the Metro Mayor and the Combined 
Authority without party distinction or bias.  

I’d like to thank the other Vice Chairperson, Councillor Paula Murphy for her help and 
support, and the Members of the Committee who have been able to attend. They have 
provided much insight and experience from their own authorities to help move the 
committee and working groups forward. 

I would also like to thank those officers and invited professional witnesses for their time 
and specialist expertise in their respected fields. 

 

Kevan Wainwright 

________________________________ 

Vice Chair, Councillor Kevan Wainwright 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 32

http://councillors.halton.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=952


5 
 

 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEMBERS 

2018/19 

  
Chairperson: Councillor 
Cashman, Carl 
Liberal Democrat, Prescot North 
Ward 
Knowsley Metropolitan Borough Council 

 
Vice Chairperson: Councillor 
Murphy, Paula 
Labour, Molyneux Ward 
Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council 

 

Vice Chairperson: Councillor 

Wainwright, Kevan 

Labour, Hough Green Ward 
Halton Borough Council  

 

 

Councillor Anderson, Tom 

Conservative, Greasby, Frankby & 

Irby Ward 
Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council 

 

Councillor Banks, Jeanette 

Labour, Haydock Ward 
St Helens Metropolitan Borough Council 

 

 

Councillor Burns, June 

Labour, Park Ward 
Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council 

 

Councillor De’ Asha, Joe 

Labour, Rainhill Ward 
St Helens Metropolitan Borough Council 

 

 

 

Councillor Finneran, Edna 
Labour, Halewood South Ward 
Knowsley Metropolitan Borough Council 

 

 

Councillor Hurley, Patrick 

Labour, Mossley Hill Ward 
Liverpool City Council 

 

 

 

Councillor Jackson, Jimmy 

Labour, Sutton Ward 
St Helens Metropolitan Borough Council 

 

 

 

Councillor Jones, Adrian 

Labour, Seacombe Ward 
Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council 

 

 

Councillor Marshall, Samantha 

Labour, Blundellsands Ward 
Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council 

 

 

Councillor McGlashan, Ken 

Labour & Co-operative, Page Moss 

Ward 
Knowsley Metropolitan Borough Council 

 

Councillor O’Brien, Tricia 

Labour, Cressington Ward 
Liverpool City Council 

 

 

Councillor Pugh, Dr John 
Liberal Democrat, Dukes Ward 
Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council 

 

 

Councillor Rasmussen, Mary 

Labour, Speke-Garston Ward 
Liverpool City Council 

 

 

Councillor Stapleton, Jean 

Labour, Birkenhead & Tranmere 

Ward 
Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council 

 

Councillor Watson, Sir Ron 

Conservative, Dukes Ward 
Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council 

 

 

Councillor Whitley, Louise 

Labour, Halton View Ward 
Halton Borough Council  

 

 

Councillor Woolfall, Bill 

Labour, Birchfield Ward 
Halton Borough Council  

 

 
 

Page 33

http://councillors.knowsley.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=1983
http://councillors.knowsley.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=153
http://moderngov.sthelens.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=544
http://moderngov.sthelens.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=135
http://moderngov.sthelens.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=602
http://councillors.halton.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=952
http://councillors.halton.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=2483
http://councillors.halton.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=1818
http://modgov.sefton.gov.uk/moderngov/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=3086
http://modgov.sefton.gov.uk/moderngov/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=6272
http://councillors.liverpool.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=3909
http://councillors.liverpool.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=32698
http://councillors.liverpool.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=2314
https://democracy.wirral.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=159
https://democracy.wirral.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=123
https://democracy.wirral.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=129


6 
 

5 scrutiny 
committees

4 workshop 
sessions

1 review

2 pre-
scrutiny 
sessions

0 call ins

20 members

6 local 
authorities

23.25 hours

7 reports

1 challenge 
session

9 meetings

6 
accountable 

sessions

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Overview and Scrutiny  

in numbers  

______ 
2018/19 

Page 34

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwiYv_H1wbvgAhVc8uAKHU_PAk4QjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https://thenounproject.com/term/committee/75777/&psig=AOvVaw0TfYaNbcr0Z14AbZlsFqPB&ust=1550243677131276
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwj9tJvRwrvgAhWa8uAKHXFzBoAQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https://iconscout.com/icon/review-1&psig=AOvVaw2i1eogrmW5d61KNSPXyBE_&ust=1550243877474980
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwiW7Mnnw7vgAhVNyhoKHTLPDH0QjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https://www.iconfinder.com/icons/1208706/analog_clock_hours_time_tracking_icon&psig=AOvVaw05P0IfKKiLG5eN5RwpmTQw&ust=1550244175821152
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&ved=2ahUKEwiS4_D5wLvgAhXM1eAKHZ8cAoAQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https://www.iconfinder.com/icons/2858156/reports_icon&psig=AOvVaw0Du4yH0J_YJIbwyyg48Qx_&ust=1550243411374610
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwixuPOVw7vgAhVKDmMBHdZLB1QQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https://www.iconfinder.com/icons/657277/challenge_gear_idea_man_organization_solution_work_icon&psig=AOvVaw28PSEU5nq-mk4dt1co7gpT&ust=1550243926262034
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwikhujhxczgAhXEZVAKHWqxCs0QjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https://www.iconfinder.com/icons/1950371/call_call_bubble_calling_calls_phone_call_icon&psig=AOvVaw2IdFQzAQNZ5NsXl2S3rUdw&ust=1550828831682292
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwie1ausxczgAhWSKVAKHeEBCaEQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https://www.iconfinder.com/icons/464795/avatar_clients_members_person_users_icon&psig=AOvVaw1GWHMSQE5rrHPI6wl9I1nI&ust=1550828721863780
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwj5s-iKw8zgAhVQJFAKHVy7AZ0QjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https://thenounproject.com/term/government/168310/&psig=AOvVaw3Jdir-HqqY56MPhXKKfJMV&ust=1550828102184705
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwit7pjRwszgAhVFJVAKHYx4ALEQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https://thenounproject.com/term/meeting/6775/&psig=AOvVaw2q0She70j-eWkxQmGAHmoN&ust=1550827985252774
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwiC0srywszgAhXSUlAKHZZ6ALYQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https://thenounproject.com/term/accountability/&psig=AOvVaw1Nq6r3hMESubNM39CqtUDn&ust=1550828044826753
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwjL2ovZx8zgAhVGJFAKHbStAbYQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https://www.iconfinder.com/icons/3342856/asset_management_competitive_strategy_cost_benefits_scrutiny_market_analysis_trend_analysis_icon&psig=AOvVaw2MijvmIVzJfc_ukxLDthJm&ust=1550829253700760
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwjgnpX8x8zgAhXEKFAKHZ1kAqgQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https://www.iconfinder.com/icons/1978709/meeting_presentation_seminar_training_workshop_icon&psig=AOvVaw2A8v2-gRr_WxawRA5VDSQe&ust=1550829422111687


7 
 

 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

At each of our five Committee meetings this year we 

received an update from the Metro Mayor Steve 

Rotheram on the progress of his activities and the key 

milestones of the Combined Authority (CA). The Metro 

Mayor provided an in-depth update to Members and 

facilitated questions relating to the previous quarter at 

each meeting. This provided the Committee with a better understanding of the Metro 

Mayor’s ongoing commitments and an opportunity to challenge and scrutinise the 

activities he had been involved in.  

 

The Committee considered a number of reports during the course of the year including 

an update on the Air Quality Action Plan which was one of the Task and Finish Group’s 

completed last year by the Committee. The six recommendations within the Action 

Plan were adopted by the CA including establishing an Air Quality Task Force to 

progress the Air Quality Action Plan. Regular updates on the Air Quality Task Force 

would be provided to the meeting for monitoring and scrutiny purposes.  

 

Other reports and updates which the Committee have considered include the One 

Front Door, Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme, Combined Authority Budget and 

an update from Councillor Phil Davies, the Portfolio Lead for Inclusive Growth, 

Economic Development, Digital and Innovation.   

 

One area of particular interest to the Committee this year has been the opportunity to  

be involved in scrutinising the Combined Authority Budget for 2019/20. This was the  

first time in which the Committee had the opportunity to scrutinise the budget and it  

was very welcomed.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 35

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwjr6er8xafgAhVBIMUKHdJeDtQQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https://johnbrace.com/2012/10/26/merseytravel-merseyside-integrated-transport-authority-25th-october-2012-authority-room-1st-floor-no-1-mann-island-liverpool/&psig=AOvVaw34-ojhjMtdT-MdWRTFgCcQ&ust=1549557558571855


8 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

WORKSHOP SESSIONS 

 

Housing Strategy - 28th November 2018  

Presented by Tim Jago & Adrian Nolan   

 

The workshop began by outlining some of the key strategic issues across the city region that 

the emerging Housing Strategy would look to take account of based on evidence and data.  

The conversation and feedback from Members centred on a number of points including: - 

 Private landlords 

 Brownfield sites 

 Future housing needs 

 Disability/accessibility 

 Adaptations within existing stock; 

 Building housing for the whole ‘life-course’ 

 Devolved funding streams 

 Management of stock 

 Leasehold Housing 

 Tenure mix 

 Density levels 

 Environmental sustainability 

 

During the workshop, Members were appraised on Combined Authority strategic housing 

objectives set out in the Corporate Plan.    

 

Homelessness was also discussed in the workshop. Although there was a lack of meaningful 

data to share, the Liverpool City Region is a Housing First national pilot and so is a priority for 

the Combined Authority and as such would be a key theme within the emerging Housing 

Strategy.   

 

The workshop concluded with a summation of the key points discussed and some overarching 

areas to explore in future. 

 

At the meeting held on 6th March 2019, the Overview and Scrutiny Committee were provided  

with an update relating to the input from the workshop and how their views and comments  

were being taken into consideration when drafting the Housing Strategy. The Committee  

members were able to see how their questions, challenges and contributions would be  

valuable to the production of a key Combined Authority document. 

 

 

 

Page 36

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwjvx4_JmLbgAhULyoUKHXO9C_cQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https://www.thebrevetgroup.com/taking-your-sales-training-from-theory-to-application/&psig=AOvVaw0I_WflPtj28WE8WNR41oSB&ust=1550060616864948
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwiNy77amrbgAhUEuRoKHX5qC0IQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Liverpool_City_Region&psig=AOvVaw15abkNYQYvK_lM40W8CvxP&ust=1550061209922747


9 
 

 

The Effectiveness of the Careers Service - 12th December  

2018 

Presented by Rob Tabb 

 

The workshop was advised that there was a consistent and 

widespread feedback from employers and stakeholders that 

the way in which careers services were currently organised 

and operated was not effective and the Combined Authority 

shared this view.   

 

There was no overall careers service in place with a range of 

different organisations given responsibilities for certain ages.  In addition, Government 

departments each commission different elements of the overall careers, education and 

guidance landscape, which made it difficult to provide coherent and consistent advice and 

support.   

 

The proposed focus for the workshop was to understand the outline in its context, identify a 

number of initiatives which were deemed to be effective and to consider a number of options 

for improvement.   

 

The workshop received presentations from a number of external organisations including: - 

 

 National Careers Service 

 Shaping Futures 

 Jobcentre Plus 

 LCR Schools Career Hubs 

 University of Liverpool Careers Team 

 

The workshop felt that though the information provided was detailed and informative, 

the absence of school representatives created an information gap and as such has  

recommended that Careers be included in the Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work  

Programme for 2019/20. There was a clear realisation that there lacked planning and  

co-ordinated efforts despite the programmes, opportunities and funding available  

within the careers community. 

 

It was recognised that this was a limitation of the way in which services were operated  

rather than being a comment on any individuals or organisations involved in this  

essential work. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 37



10 
 

 

Tourism, Culture and Marketing the Region - 17th  

December 2018 

Presented by Sarah Lovell, Pete Sandman & Paula Williams 

 

An introduction and overview on the importance of the Culture, 

Creative and Visitor Economy sectors and their joint strategic 

approach to enhance the Liverpool City Region was given to 

members attending the Workshop. Evidence of the collaboration, 

integration and governance structures of both sectors were detailed 

and exemplified across a number of key case studies outlining the 

social and economic impacts of a joined up approach. Details of both 

the Liverpool City Region’s Visitor Economy Strategy and Cultural & 

Creativity Strategies were described, and key statistics provided on 

the impact of progress to date.  

 

The workshop explored in some detail the following case studies relating to the visitor 

economy, business tourism and Cultural content: - 

 

- Atlantic Interreg Project   - Terracotta Warriors 

- Lost Castles     - Shakespeare North 

- Business Events SIF Project   - Eureka! 

- Boroughs of Culture 

 

Conversation focused on several of these and other key projects (capital and revenue)  

that will be transformational for the sectors, including the impact on place making,  

attraction, training and skills development opportunities, recognising the need for  

sustainability and ongoing investment.  

 

The group discussed a broad definition of culture as an all-encompassing term –public  

consultation had commonly defined culture as ‘everything’ covering a multitude of events,  

activities and initiatives. It also identified the important role Culture can play in supporting and  

achieving positive outcomes for health wellbeing, education, cohesion, the future world of work  

and inclusivity in engagement across all ages and backgrounds. Similarly, the meeting  

discussed the inter relationship between both the Cultural and Visitor Economy  

Sectors is generating products and experiences that make the City Region distinctive  

and help it generate wealth and jobs through visitor spend. It stressed the importance  

of taking a market lead approach to promotion that involved leading with our best- 

known brands to raise the visibility and profile of the assets and experiences that make  

the City Region special. 

 

The group heard of some of the challenges the arts and cultural sector faced when 

attempting to evidence its impact on the city region. Although there was a wealth of 

anecdotal and qualitative data suggesting the arts benefited those who participated it 

was suggested that a more robust framework was needed to showcase evidence 

particularly with regards to increasing social mobility and sustaining growth. Similarly, the 

issues around core funding for marketing and promoting the city region’s visitor offer, 

investment and skill and training and product development were also considered. 

Page 38

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwjFvo-Mn7bgAhUE2xoKHV-3DNYQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https://www.liverpoolcityregion-ca.gov.uk/governance/policy-documents/&psig=AOvVaw0zzTmaAqcYA4bdOvVjefs9&ust=1550062491090858


11 
 

 

 

 

 

EU Funding/Brexit - 23rd January 2019 

Presented by & Pernille Kousgaard & Rob Tabb 

 

The workshop provided a brief overview of EU 

funding in the City Region over the last 5-10 

years, noting that the latest tranche of funding 

would end in 2020. It was estimated that about 

23,000 EU Citizens live and work within the City 

Region. The workshop was informed that there 

were a number of projects being appraised at 

the moment and that further relevant calls were 

being prepared for publication. It was explained that some staff had been funded in a Local 

Growth Hub to look at customs, exporting, replacement staff, workforce planning etc. in 

relation to Brexit in the interim.  

 

Concerns were raised during the workshop relating to: - 

 level of funding post Brexit 

 the ‘fair funding review’  

 the rules set by the EU on funding  

It was proposed by the workshop that the Combined Authority should seek to co-design the 

UK Shared Prosperity Fund to ensure it is aligned to our ambitions as set out in the Strategic 

Investment Fund.  

The workshop discussed European Regional Development Fund and European Social Fund 

funding and it was noted that to date few applications had been rejected; projects have been 

approved with conditions to ensure they benefitted the whole City Region.  

The workshop also considered the ramifications of a ‘no deal Brexit’ including impact on trade 

deals, participation in EU programmes for universities, Research & Development projects and 

schools. It was explained that all deals other than staying within the EU would have a negative 

impact on the economy with potentially around 15,000 job losses estimated by Sussex 

University, higher inflation, VISA requirements, funding gap for languages in secondary 

schools and a hard border with Norther Ireland. Furthermore, anecdotally EU residents in the 

UK are leaving whether high or low skilled and that employers are experiencing recruitment 

and retention problems.  

 

 

 

 

Page 39

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwiw042vorbgAhUP1-AKHXRFBzkQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/live/uk-england-merseyside-36644819&psig=AOvVaw1FmnLfkG4329EvZZxRsF_9&ust=1550063297168179


12 
 

 
 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
Looking Ahead – Proposed Work Programme for 2019/20 
 
 
Overview and Scrutiny plays an important role in challenging performance and driving 
improvement and needs to be as effective as possible.  
 
The Committee would like to propose the following proposed work programme for 
2019/20: - 
 

Meeting: *21 June 2019 

Items covered: Transport & Air Quality 
 

 Presentation: Chair of the Transport Committee 

 Transforming Cities Fund 

 Air Quality Action Plan Update 

 Year of Environment 2019 

Meeting: *24 July 2019 

Items covered: Energy & Renewables 
 

 Mersey Tidal Power Project 

 SIF update 

 Welfare Reform Update 

Meeting: *16 October 2019 

Items covered: Housing and Spatial Planning 
 

 Housing Strategy Update 

 Housing First Update 

Meeting: *8 January 2020 

Items covered: Policy, Resources, Strategy & Delivery 
 

 LCRCA Financial Performance Report 2018/19, 2019/20 

 Liverpool City Region Budget for 2020/21 

Meeting: *11 March 2020 

Items covered: Education, Employment, Apprenticeships & Skills 
 

 Careers 

 Apprenticeships 

 Digital Connectivity Update 

 Skills Investment Strategy 

 
 
*Dates are subject to approval by the Combined Authority 
 

Page 40



13 
 

 
 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
How to get involved 
 
 
There is one main way you can get involved with the LCR Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee process and that is by attending Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
meetings. These are all public meetings and therefore open to any local resident who 
wishes to attend. The Overview and Scrutiny Committees will be live cast at future 
meetings in the new municipal year through the Combined Authority website. See link 
below: 

 
https://moderngov.merseytravel.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=365 

 

Page 41

https://moderngov.merseytravel.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=365
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwjO7obamsXgAhVR1hoKHSDZDPEQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https://www.healthandcareresearch.gov.wales/news/public-involvement-standards-consultation-now-live/&psig=AOvVaw3P_ERVvSUhsjITDqmAZoJb&ust=1550576741592490


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee
	Minutes
	Draft Minutes - 300119 v2
	Minutes


	5 Draft Housing Strategy Update
	Enc. 1 for Draft Housing Strategy Update

	7 Overview and Scrutiny Committee Review for 2018/19
	O&S Cttee DRAFT Annual Report 2018-19 v3 JC, LW comments


